CARR-1548
447 Crowl Road, Union Mills Vicinity

Summary:

The Frock-Burgoon Farm has a very complicated history, as it consists of portions of

- several parcels that were combined, divided, and re-combined in changing configurations. The
buildings rest on part of an 85 acre farm purchased by Peter Lookingbeal in 1837. In 1862 30
acres of this tract were placed under the control of a trustee who sold the land the following year
to John Frock of John. The purchase price was $530, or $17.67 an acre. No advertisement or
description of the property could be located. In 1867 John Frock was sued in circuit court and a
Sheriff’s sale of several properties, including this one, was the result. The advertisement for this
sale made no méntion of improvements, but Sheriff’s sale ads are often frustratingly vague. Frock
was not living on this parcel, but along the Baltimore and Reisterstown Turnpike near Joshua
Wisner’s Hotel. - Both the hotel and Frock’s home can be located on the 1862 map, just north of
this site. Unfortunately, the court records could not be located to shed any more light on the

property.




Survey No. CARR-1548

MARYLAND INVENTORY OF

Maryland Historical Trust HISTORIC PROPERTIES agl No.
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _ yes _ no

s

1. Name ¢indicate preferred name)

historic Frock-Burgoon Farm

and/or common

2. Location |

street & number 447 Crowl Road ____not for publication
city, town Union Mills __Xvicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
- = -
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district- —___ public ~>__ occupied —__ agricuiture — ___museum
X building(s) i private - unoccupied ____commercial . park
— structure ___both - work in progress — educational X private residence
- site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment - religious
. Object —__inprocess .. yes: restricted —___government ____scientific
- being considered ~x— yes: unrestricted — industrial - transportation
_Xnot applicable & po —__ military —__ other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Barbara D. Miller
street & number 447 Crowl Road IR telephone no.:
city, town Westminster state and zip code Maryland 21158

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber LWS 1751
street & number 55 N. Court Street folio 565
city, town Westminster ‘ state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

title None

date — federal __ _state ___county ___local

e

Jository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. CARR-1548
Condition Check one Check one

—_excellent — deteriorated —x unalitered — Xoriginal site

_Xgood —_ruins _ altered . — moved date of move

— fair __ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

See Attached



8. Significance Survey No. ~CARR-1548

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
__prehistoric ___ archeclogy-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
.- 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —__conservation — law — science
1500-1599 X _ agriculture —___econhomics —literature —sculpture
—_1600-1699 _X_ architecture — education — military — social/
—_1700-1799 __art ___engineering — music humanitarian
—*%X1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —— theater
— 1900~ —___communications —— industry —_politics/government ___ transportation
—___invention — . other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A __ B XC _ D
“and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _ D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ mnational __ state _ZXlocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬁ@ral statement of history and
support. |

See Attached




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. CARR-1548

See Attached

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 20.719 A.
Quadrangle name ___Littlestown Quadrangle scale _1:24000

UTM References Jo NOT complete UTM references
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Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county ‘ code

11. Form Prepared By

nameititle Kenneth M. Short, Historic Planner

organization Carroll County Planning & Develop date May 18, 1999

225 North Center Street (410) 386-2145
street & number telephone

city or town Westminster state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: ryland Historical Trust

) MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

; cle DHCP/DHCD

Annapolis, Mafylamd 21401 445 coMMUNITY PLACE

(301) 269-2438 CROWNSVILLE, MD 210322023

5147600 PS-2746
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The Frock-Burgoon farm is located at 447 Crowl Road, approximately 12 miles
southeast of Union Mills, in north-central Carroll County, Maryland. The farm sits at the
north end of a long, private drive and sits in a natural bowl. The ground slopes down
from the northeast to the southwest and the buildings are set close to the lowest point,
although the ground continues to drain down to the west. The ridge lines are covered
with trees. The complex consists of a log house and a frame bank barn.

The house is banked on the north with an exposed foundation on the south
elevation. It is a two-story, three-bay by two-bay log structure with a rubble stone
foundation, aluminum siding, and a gable roof with inverted v-seam metal with an east-
west ridge. On the south elevation, the porch is enclosed at the lower story. The west
end has CMU’s. The east-end wall is parged. On the first story, there is a center entrance
with a four-paneled door and a six-over-six sash to either side. There is a one-story,
three-bay porch that wraps around on the east. On the south, the porch is supported by
five square wood posts and has a shed roof of standing-seam metal. The second story has
a six-over-six sash in each end bay, with no opening in the center. There is a box cornice,
and an interior brick chimney between the center and east bays.

On the east elevation, the foundation area below the porch is enclosed and this
wall is parged. The first story has a six-over-six sash in the south bay and a six-paneled
door in the north bay. The top two panels are glazed. The northeast corner of the porch
is enclosed and has a vertical-board door on the south elevation. The second story of the
east elevation has two six-over-six sash, and the gable end has a vent that appears to the
placed over top of a four-light sash. There is a one-story wing on the rear, or north,
elevation that is a more recent addition. It is a two-bay by one-bay structure with a CMU
foundation and a gable roof of asphalt shingles with a north-south ridge. There are no
openings currently on the north elevation of the main block, above this wing. On the west
elevation, the foundation has a six-over-six sash in the center with beaded-edge-and-center
vertical-board shutters. The first and second stories each have two six-over-six sash and
the gable end has a vent in the center.

The cellar is divided into two rooms. The west cellar has a fireplace on the east
elevation that has straight jambs and traces of plaster. There is no evidence of a crane.
The south elevation has vertical posts beneath a sill that is hewn on all four sides. The
first story joists are tenoned into the sill. The exterior of this south elevation, which was
formerly exposed before the area beneath the porch was enclosed, has flush-board siding
and beaded-edge vertical-board shutters hung on cast iron butt hinges. The west cellar
has beaded-edge-and-center vertical-board half wainscot on the south elevation and the
ceiling. Both cellars are plastered.
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The first floor plan appears to have originally been three rooms: one on the east
and two on the west. The east room does not have a fireplace but simply a flue on the
west elevation. The stairway has been altered. Originally there was a winder stair in the
northwest corner of this room that led both to the cellar and up to the second story and
attic. The west room has no distinguishing features. The stairway comes up into the east
chamber. The wall between the east and west chambers is of sash-sawn studs that are
approximately 2 by 4's. The west chamber has a more finished floor.

The building is constructed with log walls and there are corner posts in three
corners. The fourth corner could not be observed. The building was undergoing
renovation, with much of the original lath and plaster being removed. The lath was laid
vertically and fastened with cut nails. It is circular-sawn lath. The logs beneath are reused
and there are some v-notch corners set at the edges of the windows. These logs were
tenoned into the corner posts and pegged. The logs from adjacent walls are set level with
each other at the corner, rather than staggered, and every other log is pegged on one
elevation. Presumably, every other log is pegged on the opposite elevation so that the
pegs alternate, however, this could not be observed. The top south and north logs overlap
the corner posts. There are traces of whitewash on some of the logs, but the chinking is
not whitewashed. The window and door openings have plain mitered architraves. The
joists are sash-sawn and are approximately 2 by 6's. The rafters are hewn and are
approximately 3 by 3's with a ridge pole. The rafters appear to be slightly tapered, being a
little bit wider at the feet, and have a false plate with a bird=s mouth cut at the foot to lap
over the false plate.

About one hundred feet east of the house is a bank barn with a forebay that faces
southeast and a ramp on the northwest side. The barn has rubble stone on the lower story
with new horizontal siding on the southeast elevation of the lower story. It also has
beaded-edge-and-center vertical-board siding on the upper story and a gable roof of
inverted-v-seam metal with a northeast-to-southwest ridge. On the southeast elevation,
the lower story has a large centered door on rollers with an opening to each side. The
upper story has center double doors set above another pair of double doors. There are
two wood vents to each side. The south-center and east-center vents each have a four-
light sash at the bottom.

The northeast elevation of the barn is somewhat overgrown on the lower story, but
appears to have one or two openings there. The upper story gable end has an opening,
and the bottom sash survives. It has four lights, but the upper sash is now gone. There is
a wood louver to each side of the sash and a pediment set above it. There are holes in the
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siding and flashing near the eave suggesting some kind of shed was originally attached to
this side. On the northwest elevation, the upper story has center double wagon doors on
machine-made strap hinges. There is a wood vent to the north and a vent with a four-light
sash at the bottom of it to the west. On the southwest elevation, the lower story has two
four-over-four sash. The upper story has three bipartite wood-louvered vents and a door
set at the west end. The gable end has a four-over-four sash with a wood louver to each
side and a pediment above.

The lower story has a summer beam that is circular sawn on all four sides. The
summer beam runs northeast to southwest and is set roughly in the center. There is an
extra summer beam very close to the northwest wall. The joists rest on the second
summer beam and on the foundation, however, the joists are tenoned into the center
summer beam with a center tenon. The joists are circular sawn on top and bottom. The
southeast or forebay wall is of frame and appears to be primarily original beneath the later
siding. The upper story of the barn has a center threshing floor with a hay mow to each
side and a granary in the west corner. There are four mortised and tenoned and pegged
braced bents, each bent having four posts each, and a queen post trust supports the roof
structure. Most of the timber is circular sawn, though there are several hewn braces that
are probably reused timber. Each bent has down braces from the lower girt down to the

joists in the end bays. There are sawn rafters that are mitered at the ridge and support
lath.

Contributing Resources: 2
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The Frock-Burgoon Farm has a very complicated history, as it consists of portions of several
parcels that were combined, divided, and re-combined in changing configurations. The buildings
rest on part of an 85 acre farm purchased by Peter Lookingbeal in 1837. In 1862 30 acres of this
tract were placed under the control of a trustee who sold the land the following year to John
Frock of John. The purchase price was $530, or $17.67 an acre. No advertisement or description
of the property could be located. In 1867 John Frock was sued in circuit court and a Sheriff’s
sale of several properties, including this one, was the result. The advertisement for this sale made
no mention of improvements, but Sheriff’s sale ads are often frustratingly vague. Frock was not
living on this parcel, but along the Baltimore and Reisterstown Turnpike near Joshua Wisner’s
Hotel. Both the hotel and Frock’s home can be located on the 1862 map, just north of this site.
Unfortunately, the court records could not be located to shed any more light on the property.

William Burgoon purchased several of the Frock properties in September 1867 and deeded
this small farm to John Frock’s wife, Matilda, in March 1868. The purchase price was now
$1,000 or $33.33 per acre. In a five year period the Frock’s almost doubled the price they paid
for the farm, suggesting that perhaps there were no buildings on it when they first purchased it,
and that the house was added by them. There are several features of the house which would
suggest a later date of construction, in the 1850's or 1860's. The use of 6/6 sash has been
observed in Carroll County at least up to 1870. The logs in the walls are re-used, with v-notch
corners surviving at the edges of windows. The logs might have come from anywhere, but they
were in good enough condition to be used again from an earlier structure. When they were re-
used, the original cornering was not used. Instead this house has corner posts. Several other
corner post structures have been documented, and it is believed that these may represent a late
trend in log construction, possibly a transition from log to box framing.

One example is the Stephan-Sullivan Farm (CARR-1556) which was probably built c. 1852-
66, and the Bish Family Farm (CARR-1580). The chinking here is not whitewashed, indicating
that the lath and plaster is the original interior finish. The lath is circular sawn. This did not
become readily available until after 1840, and by the early 1850's was the only lath used. The
rafters use a ridge pole which is a very rare feature before 1860; most examples occur in the
towns, and it does not become common in farm houses in Carroll County until the advent of
balloon framing in the 1880's and 1890's. Of course, this could be an early roof replacement, as
storms often took off roofs. While there is nothing conclusive, there is at least the strong
suggestion that this house is from the early 1860's.

The Frocks expanded the farm by adding more land: a 4 acre parcel in 1866 and 34 ' acres in
1877. Perhaps to finance the last purchase they took out a mortgage on their property, and again
got into financial trouble. The farm, now 69 acres, was sold by a trustee in November 1884. The
sale ad simply noted that it was “...improved with a very comfortable Log House, Barn...” The
farm was purchased by John W. H. Burgoon, and like the Frock’s before him, Burgoon probably
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used it as a rental property; When he sold it in 1904, Burgoon had moved to Baltimore City. The
property changed hands frequently in the twentieth century. The barn is constructed of circular-
sawn timber which would generally date it after 1890.

Geographic Organization:
Piedmont

Chronological/Developmental Periods:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial/Urban Dominance AD. 1870-1930

Historic Period Themes:
Agriculture/Architecture

Resource Type:
Small Family Farm, Rural Vernacular
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1862,1877,1917 maps

Westminster American Sentinel 29 Aug 1867, p.2, c.4.

Westminster Democratic Advocate 18 Oct. 1884, p.2, c.8.
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CARR-1548
Frock-Burgoon Farm

447 Crowl Rd

CHAIN OF TITLE

Cindy Soloway Carroll Barbara D. Miller Carroll 13 Dec LWS 1751 565 Deed Fee | $148,000 32 %
1995 Simple ac-12 ac 20.719
ac
Stephen P. McDonald & ? Cindy Soloway ? 20 Feb LWS 1256 569 Deed Fee | 32 % ac $0.00
Cindy Soloway (wf) 1991 Simple
James Paige & Carlene Doris | ? Stephen P. McDonald & ? 19 May LWS 831 936 Deed Fee | $97,000 32 %
Plank (wf) Cindy Soloway (wf) 1983 Simple ac
Dorothy Virginia Collins pers | Anne James Paige & Carlene Doris | Carroll 17 Nov LWS 778 355 Deed Fee | Will RLS 25-
rep of Louis Andrew Doyle Arundel Plank (wf) 1980 Simple 673 $66,100.00
Sr. Carroll 32 % ac.
Edwin T. & Dora Louise Carroll Louis A. & Edna M. Doyle ? 1 Dec 1959 | 313 383 Deed Fee | $5.00 32 % ac
Wenderoth (wf) (wf) Simple
John F. Ireland & wf Carroll Edwin T. & Dora Louise Carroll 12 Jun EAS 221 530 Deed Fee | $5.00 32 % ac
Elizabeth F. Wenderoth (wf) 1953 Simple
David S. & Carrie B. Carroll John F. & Elizabeth F. ? 10 Jun EAS 221 526 Quit 32 % ac. $10.00
Pennington (wf) Ireland 1953 claim
Deed

Robert Lee Tucker & wf Carroll John F. & Elizabeth F. Baito. Co. 31 Jan EAS 211 365 Deed Fee | $10.00 2 tracts-
Neelie F. Ireland 1952 Simple 42 +ac
Charles H. & Pauline V. Carroll Robert Lee & Nellie F. Howard 14 Aug EAS 209 565 Deed Fee | $10.00 42 + ac.
Baird (wf) Tucker (wf) 1951 Simple
Benjamin & Ray Harwitz (wf) | Balto. City Charles H. & Pauline V. Carroll 16 Oct EAS 200 27 Deed Fee $10.00

Baird (wf) 1948 Simple 1) Ohio 8+ac 2)

4+ ac.
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CARR-1548
Frock-Burgoon Farm
447 Crowl Rd
CHAIN OF TITLE
Andrew & Minnie Osborne Carroll Benjamin & Ray Harwitz Carroll 13 Apr. EAS 183 255 Deed Fee | $10.00 1) Ohio
(wf) (wf) 1944 Simple 38+ac
2) 4+ ac.
David S. & Carrie Pennington | Carroll Andy Osborne Washington | 3 Mar 1937 | LDM 165 | 480 Deed Fee | $10.00 38+ac
(wf) Co. Va Simple
D. Eugene Walsh assignee of | Carroll David S. & Carrie ? 29 Jan LDM 165 | 382 Deed Fee | $600 38+ ac
Mortgage Pennington (wf) 1937 Simple Equity 6639
John F. & Helene Niner (wf) | Carroll Squire D. & Chole D. Kolar Montrose, 21 June EMM 352 Deed Fee | $10.00 38+ ac
(wf) Randolph 1922 1922 Simple
Co. W. VA.
William H. & Eva V. Crowl Carroll John F. Niven Carroll 18 Feb ODG 126 151 Deed Fee | $2,000.00 a)4 ac
(wf) 1915 Simple Ohio b) 30 ac ¢)
Shoemaker’s lot
34 ac total 69
ac-31
ac=38+4ac
John H. Formwalt Adams Co. William H. Crowl Carroll 3 Apr. DPS 101 221 Deed Fee | $750 Ohio 30
Pa 1905 ) Simple ac. shoemakers
lot 34 ac. 69+
ac.-31
ac=38+ac
John W.H. Burgoon & wf Balto. City John H. Formwalt Adams Co., | 16 Apr. DPS 100 73 Deed Fee | $570 a) Ohio
Emma V. PA 1904 Simple 4ac b) 30 ac ¢)
34 ac 6+ ac-31
ac=38+ac
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CARR-1548
Frock-Burgoon Farm
447 Crowl Rd

CHAIN OF TITLE

George Edward Hoppe,
trustee

Carroll

John W. H. Burgoon Carroll

7 Apr.
1885

FTS 62

370

Deed

Mortgage
Amanda & John
Frock of John to
J. Henry Hoppe
16 Apr. 1877
FTS 10-320 sold
11 Nov. 1884-
public sale
$1205 Equity 22
57 69 +ac a)
Ohio 4ac

b) 30 ac

¢) Shoemaketr’s
lot 34ac

Levi D. & Belinda Frock (wf)

Carroll

Matilda Frock wf of John ?
Frock of John

18 Aug
1866

WAMCSK
34

53

Deed Fee
Simple

$298,50 4+ ac
$74.62/ac

William N. Burgoon & wf
Anna Mary

Carroll

Matilda Frock, wf of John ?
Frock of J.

19 Mar.
1868

JBB 36

120

Deed Fee
Simple

$1,000
$33.33/ac

Edward Lynch, trustee

Matilda Frock, wf of John Carroll
Frock

6 Apr 1877

FTS 48

17

Deed

Equity 17 Jan.
1872 Ed. Lynch
et al v, John
Lynch $798.53
34 YL +ac
$23.15/ac Res
on Shoemakers

Peter Looking Bill

Levi D. Frock ?

8 Sept.
1859

GEW 26

237

Deed Fee

lot

$199 4+ac
$49.75/ac [no
prev. refl]




CARR-1548
Frock-Burgoon Farm
447 Crowl Rd

CHAIN OF TITLE

Jacob D. Hoppe, Sheriff Carroll William N. Burgoon ? 18 Sept JBB 36 117 Deed Circuit Ct. 20

1867 Aug 1867 Ann
‘ Rengle v. John
Frock of J.
includes sev.
Properties b) is
30 ac. is not
where John
Frock was living
[can’t find it in
Equity Docket]
Dist. 3 JP Kent.
Hotel of Joshua
Wisner

Perry Rumler, Trustee Carroll John Frock of John ? 19 Feb. JBB 36 117 Deed Fee | $530 30 ac.
1863 Simple $17.67/ac

Peter Lookingbeal Carroll Perry Rumler Carroll 1 Apr. GEW 28 535 Deed of | 30 ac.
1862 Trust

Peter Erb of John & wf Mary | York Co., Peter Lookingbeal Carroll 4 Sept. WWwi 315 Deed $550 85 ac. w.
PA 1837 Indenture | side of turnpike
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